
  

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE & CITY OF NOTTINGHAM FIRE & RESCUE  AUTHORITY -  
COMMUNITY SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Friday, 17 June 2016 Time:  10.00 am 
 
Venue: Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, Bestwood Lodge, Arnold, 

Nottingham, NG5 8PD 
 
 
Members are requested to attend the above meeting to be held at the time, place 
and date mentioned to transact the following business 
 

 
Clerk to the Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire and Rescue Authority 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Pages 

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 8 April 2016 
 

3 - 4 

4  NEW CROSS PROJECT  
Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 

5 - 14 

5  SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE MODEL  
Report of the Chief Fire Officer 
 

15 - 18 

 
 
 
ANY COUNCILLOR WHO IS UNABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND WISHES TO 
SUBMIT APOLOGIES SHOULD DO SO VIA THE PERSONAL ASSISTANT TO THE 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER AT FIRE SERVICES HEADQUARTERS ON 0115 967 0880 

Public Document Pack



 
IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ABOVE, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CONSTITUTIONAL SERVICES OFFICER SHOWN ON THIS 
AGENDA, IF POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING.  
 
Constitutional Services Officer:  James Welbourn  
 0115 8763288 
 james.welbourn@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 

 
 

Agenda, reports and minutes for all public meetings can be viewed online at:- 
http://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 

 

http://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1


1 

 

NOTTINGHAMSHIRE AND CITY OF NOTTINGHAM 

FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 

 
NOTTINGHAMSHIRE & CITY OF NOTTINGHAM FIRE & RESCUE  AUTHORITY -  
COMMUNITY SAFETY 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Fire and Rescue Service Headquarters, 
Bestwood Lodge, Arnold, Nottingham, NG5 8PD on 8 April 2016 from 9.59 - 
10.26 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Eunice Campbell (Chair) 
Councillor Brian Grocock 
Councillor Roger Jackson 
Councillor Dave Liversidge 
Councillor Mike Pringle 
 

Councillor Ken Rigby 
 

 
  
 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Keith Jones - Area Manager Service Delivery, NFRS 
Craig Parkin - Assistant Chief Fire Officer, NFRS 
James Welbourn - Governance Officer 
 
20  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Ken Rigby – personal reasons 
 
21  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
22  MINUTES 

 
The Committee confirmed the minutes of the meeting held on 8 January 2016 as a 
true record and they were signed by the Chair. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Nottinghamshire & City of Nottingham Fire & Rescue  Authority -  Community Safety - 
8.04.16 

2 

 
23  PUBLIC ACCESS DEFIBRILLATORS 

 
Craig Parkin, Assistant Chief Fire Officer, presented the report on Public Access 
Defibrillators, a proposal between the Community Heartbeat Trust and 
Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
After discussion with members, the following information was provided: 
 
(a) having defibrillators in more locations allows for early intervention on heart 

attacks.  Often, members of a local community will be able to tell when an 
individual is struggling and in need of a defibrillator – the devices are very 
easy to use; 

 
(b) the defibrillators give the Nottinghamshire Fire and Rescue Service (NFRS) 

standing in local communities.  The devices are largely free of charge, and will 
be maintained by NFRS; 

 
(c) Councillor Brian Grocock suggested writing to all City Councillors to see if they 

would like to make a contribution to London Road and Stockhill stations out of 
their allowances.  This matter could also be referred to relevant Area 
Committees; 

 
(d) defibrillators will be bolted onto the front of fire stations, and to access them a 

code will be required.  The code can be supplied by dialling 999.   
 
 The Heartbeat Trust can inform members on non-fire station installations; 
 
(e) it is hoped that the increase in defibrillators can ease some of the burden on 

the NHS.  If a quick intervention is possible, it may just save more lives; 
 
(f) a risk analysis of communities needs to be carried out by NFRS on an annual 

basis.  It will be interesting to discover whether residents feel that the fire 
service is part of the health agenda, or whether they are just needed for 
response; 

 
(g) there will be a Joint Health Seminar held at NFRS involving County 

Councillors, City Councillors and NFRS; 
 
(h) the Communications team at NFRS are involved with the launch of this 

scheme.  There is also an expectation that staff should tell residents about this 
when visiting the community. 

 
RESOLVED to: 
 
(1) note the contents of the report and support the proposal; 
 
(2) ask Wendy Fletcher to give Automated External Defribrillator training to 

Members that would like this.  
 
 

Page 4



 

 
 
 

Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham 
Fire and Rescue Authority  
Community Safety Committee 
 

NEW CROSS PROJECT  
 

Report of the Chief Fire Officer  
 
 
 
 
 

  
Date:  17th June 2016 
  
Purpose of Report: 

 
To provide Members with an update on the evaluation outcomes of the New Cross 
Project as requested at the January 2016 Community Safety Committee Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Name :  
Wayne Bowcock 
Deputy Chief Fire Officer 

Tel : 0115 967 0880 

Email : wayne.bowcock@notts-fire.gov.uk 

Media Enquiries 
Contact : 

Therese Easom 
(0115) 967 0880  therese.easom@notts-fire.gov.uk 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

mailto:therese.easom@notts-fire.gov.uk


 

1. BACKGROUND 

 
1.1 The New Cross pilot area in Nottinghamshire covers a community of 1,200 

homes within Sutton-in-Ashfield. The area was chosen because it is of 
significant interest to many local service providers: for Nottinghamshire Police, 
the area is a hotspot for crime and anti-social behaviour, for Ashfield District 
Council there are environmental concerns due to high clean-up rates in the 
area, whilst for local health services the area has above average levels of 
under 18 pregnancy, high levels of mental health problems and a significant 
number of call outs for Fire and Ambulance services. 

 
1.2 At the heart of these multi-faceted social problems are the ‘troubled families’. 

The area has the highest proportion of ‘troubled families’ in the district, with 
complex needs and service requirements that depend upon multi-agency 
intervention to tackle many of the issues outlined above.  

 
1.3 Members received a report at the January 2016 Community Safety 

Committee meeting, detailing the purpose and progress of the New Cross 
project and requested a further update once the formal evaluation, carried out 
by Nottingham Trent University, was available. 

  

2. REPORT 

 
2.1 The 18 month project has been subject to periods of review and academic 

evaluation by Nottingham Trent University. To date, the Risk Reduction 
Officer seconded to the team has been assigned as a case worker to 4 cases. 
The findings of one particular case involving a young female resident has 
been used as an example of the success of the approach and shared with 
partners within the county.  

2.2 The mid-point evaluation evidenced that the formal multi-agency approach is 
a clear direction of travel for all preventative programmes of this nature: 
working to tackle multiple barriers and engaging communities to intervene 
early before problems become critical. By doing so, there is potential to 
transform communities and achieve significant savings for the public purse.  

2.3      A key measure of the project will be its ability to create stronger, more 
resilient communities: ones that are better connected, have higher aspirations 
and are willing to do more for themselves, ultimately increasing the social 
value provided by the Fire and Rescue Service and wider public sector. 

2.4 The final evaluation report has now been issued jointly by Ashfield District 
Council and Nottingham Trent University, executive summary attached as 
appendix 1.  The key points from the evaluation include: 

 Evaluation methodology of team and resident interviews to consider, 
context, inputs delivered and outcomes achieved.  Cost analysis on a 
case by case basis and the impact on quality of life.   

Page 6



 

 The multi-disciplinary make-up of the team was key to the approach, 
particularly since the inclusion of social care and Framework Housing 
but health were still the missing discipline. 

 A locally based team with one point of contact was valued by the 
service users. 

 Cost savings for the project across the case load translates to, for 
every £1 spent to support a New Cross resident £7 could be saved. 

 Social value impact (in conjunction with activities of other services): 
Ashfield District Council service demand reduction of 7%.  Anti-social 
behaviour reduction of 17%.  Serious Acquisitive Crime reduction of 
34%.  Violent Crime reduction of 5%.  Criminal damage reduction of 
21%. 

 Significant quality of life gains were reported by residents including: 
family, confidence, housing/accommodation, employment and 
finances.  In context this includes six out of eleven resident 
interviewees stating an intention to end their lives had they not 
received support, two believing they were heading towards prison, 
three at the point of mental health breakdown and two said their 
homelessness would have continued. 

2.5 The direct and indirect benefits from being a partner in this approach for 
communities are the skills and expertise in home safety, supporting 
independent living, working with vulnerability and non-authoritative problem 
solving nature of our workforce.   

2.6      In addition to this, those considering ending their own lives, living chaotic 
lifestyles, suffering mental health breakdowns would all fall into the target 
profile for the NFRS community safety team and are proven to be at greater 
risk of injury or death from fire.  Therefore this approach continues the 
Services commitment to early intervention in order to drive down demand, 
increase social value and ultimately create safer communities.  

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
3.1 The cost of seconding a Risk Reduction Officer to the project team on a full 

time basis, for a period of 18 months, has been met from existing budgets.  
The total cost between 2014 and 2016 was £53k, comprising pay and travel 
and subsistence. 

 
3.2 The service has agreed to commit to fund one post and second one member 

of staff to the project for up to three years, on an annually reviewed basis.  
This commitment will be met from existing posts and ear marked reserve 
budgets.  The cost will depend upon the existing grade of the staff member 
who takes up this secondment but as an estimate will be in the region of £35k 
per annum. 

 
 

Page 7



 

 
 

4. HUMAN RESOURCES AND LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  
IMPLICATIONS 

 
The secondment to the project team will be met by existing resources in the 
Community Safety Team. 
 

5. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
An equality impact assessment has not been undertaken because the information 
contained in this report does not relate to a change in policy or procedure. 
 

6.      CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Working in partnership within the New Cross Project directly supports the Authority’s 
statutory duties under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  
 

7.      LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 Beyond the statutory prevention duty under the Fire and Rescue Services Act 

2004 (which is aimed specifically at fire prevention) there are no legal 
implications arising from this report. 

 
7.2 The commitment to the project satisfies the requirements of multi-agency 

approach and information sharing of the Care Act 2014 and the Antisocial 
Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 
7.3 This approach further demonstrates the services commitment to collaboration 

which is a potential legal implication within the Policing and Crime Bill 2015-
16. 

 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
Management of community safety is a statutory duty within the Fire and Rescue 
Services Act 2004 and specifically the Fire and Rescue National Framework and 
locally the IRMP.  Furthering the contribution of fire into the multiagency New Cross 
initiative builds on the prevention work currently undertaken and indirectly supports 
improved fire safety whilst collectively reducing the risk and burden to the wider 
public sector. 
 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That Members note the content of the report. 
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR INSPECTION (OTHER THAN PUBLISHED 
DOCUMENTS) 

 
None. 
 
 
 
John Buckley 
CHIEF FIRE OFFICER 

Page 9



 

Appendix 1 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The evaluation of the New Cross Project combined an internal evaluation that had 
been ongoing since the start of the project in 2014, and was being undertaken by 
the New Cross Support Team, with an external evaluation commissioned from 
Nottingham Trent University. The external evaluation commenced in July 2015 
following ethical approval from the College of Business, Law and Social Sciences 
Ethics Committee at the University. 
 
The evaluation design was based upon a previously tried and tested framework 
(Bailey, 2002 and 2007, Bailey and Kerlin, 2015 and 2012, Ward and Bailey 2015) 
that combined the collection of qualitative and quantitative data to enable an in-depth 
understanding of: 
 

 How the Project was situated including supports and barriers for the multi-
agency team (context evaluation) 

 What providing more bespoke solutions for New Cross residents looked like 
(input evaluation) 

 Whether these bespoke solutions led to reduced demand for services and 
more cost-effective care delivery (outcomes for the organisation[s]) 

 Whether  the  quality  of  life  for  residents  in  the  New  Cross  area  
improved (outcomes for New Cross residents) 

 
Context evaluation data consisted of observations of two New Cross team meetings, 
which informed the design of the interview schedule for team members. Nine team 
members were interviewed including the New Cross Support Team Leader. 
Feedback was collated and thematically analysed from a stakeholder event which 
took place in Kirkby-in- Ashfield in October 2015. 
 
Input evaluation consisted of eleven in-depth interviews with New Cross residents 
sampled on the basis of their outcome star profiles to reflect complex and less 
complex cases. The interview questions were initially piloted with a New Cross 
resident to check relevance, ease of understanding and completeness. The initial 
interview schedule was modified based on the resident’s feedback. 
 
Input evaluation data was also obtained from semi-structured interviews with 8 
members of the New Cross Support Team and the Team Leader. 
 
Outcome evaluation consisted of an analysis of costs on a case by case basis in 
addition to the in-depth interviews with residents which gave them an opportunity to 
explain their outcome star profiles. This allowed for a rich understanding of how 
residents had experienced any changes in their quality of life as reflected in their 
narratives. This level of understanding also helped to explain the changes in costs and 
demands for services. 

Page 10



 

The interviews with residents and team members were audio recorded and 
transcribed verbatim. The transcripts together with the detailed notes from the 
team observations and the notes of the stakeholder meeting were subject to 
thematic analysis to identify overarching themes and sub-categories (Lincoln 
and Guba 1985). 

 
The strength of the evaluation approach lies in its ability to understand and 
articulate the context in which the New Cross team is operating as well 
as the outcomes being achieved (the key ingredients for success). This 
becomes important for Commissioners seeking to replicate the service in other 
areas. 

 
Key findings for each level of the evaluation are summarised below: 

 

Level of 
Evaluation 

Key Findings 

 
Context 

 
There was clear strategic support for the New Cross Project shared 
between the respective agencies, including Ashfield DC, Police, 
Social Services, Fire and Rescue. This was evidenced by the 
contribution of financial support to budgets and human resources 
through secondments of staff to the team. Support for the Project 
also came from a wider network of agencies with whom the team 
worked for example the hoarding service. 

 
Management arrangements for team members differed with 
some team members being solely accountable to the Team Leader 
at New Cross while others retained a manager in their substantive 
post which made reporting requirements complex. For a minority of 
team members this also resulted in a degree of uncertainty about 
whether they would return to their substantive post in March 
2016 and take the lessons learned from the multi-agency way of 
working in New Cross back to their respective agency or whether 
they would become attached to the New Cross team for a longer 
period. 

 
Factors which supported the New Cross Project were the 
leadership of the team which was considered to have organically 
evolved with the project, becoming more effective as the Project 
had developed. The person centered nature of the approach which 
characterised the way in which team members engaged and 
worked with residents was also reflected in the person centered 
nature of the leadership of the New Cross Support Team (the 
way the Team Leader worked with staff). 

 
The expertise which each team member brought from their 
respective agencies was highly valued by the team and the 
seconding agencies with almost all team members saying that they 
had been strongly encouraged to apply for the roles.  

Page 11



 

  
The case lead way of working, together with what was 
considered to be the right mix of disciplines now that Social 
Services and Framework had joined the team, was key to the 
approach.  Health was identified as a key discipline missing from 
the team. 
 
Barriers included tensions reflecting a perception of the 
different status of team members and the time needed for the 
team to evolve to a position where they could perform as a 
truly interdisciplinary team. Team members felt that some form 
of more formalised professional supervision could have 
expedited this. 
 
Team performance at the time of the evaluation could be 
identified as interdisciplinary working and this had successfully 
evolved from the initial stages of multi-agency working. This 
means that there is good evidence of team members 
interacting to share distinct as well as overlapping areas of 
expertise and that the sum of the whole team’s capabilities and 
contribution to outcomes for New Cross residents was 
greater than each individual’s contributions added together. 
This way of working was highly valued and evidenced by the 
experiences of residents. 

 
Inputs 

 
From staff’s perspective a bespoke intervention was person 
centered and began by working with a resident’s strengths. 
Residents characterised bespoke interventions by the practical 
nature of support provided (wrote letters, debt management, 
got rid of rubbish, got help for domestic violence, help with 
employment) as well as the support to attend appointments 
with the resident (with CAB, GPs/doctors, job centre). 

 
These inputs were delivered in non-judgmental ways and 
residents valued highly; feeling listened to and having their 
concerns written down and taken seriously. All eleven residents 
interviewed were supportive of the case lead approach which 
meant they only had to deal with one person. They valued the 
regular contact with New Cross workers either by phone, text 
or by going direct to the team base in Chatsworth Street. 
 

Outcomes 
(organisational) 

A summary of cost savings for the project could be understood 
in terms of micro and macro outcomes. 
 
Micro outcomes: Analysis of the historical costs of the 16 cases 
fully evaluated showed the total costs saved to the public sector 
from these 16 cases by 2017 would be £385k. 

Page 12



 

  
Extrapolating these savings for all 115 residents with which 
the team had worked since its inception the public sector 
saving would be in the region of £2.75m which translates to; 
for every £1 spent to support a New Cross resident £7 could 
be saved. 
 
Macro outcomes: Year on year demand level comparisons show 
that there has been a significant initial impact upon the quality of 
life within the wider community of New Cross residents. Demands 
for services at District Council level has fallen by 7%, allied to falls 
in Anti-social Behaviour (17%), Serious Acquisitive Crime (34%), 
Violent Crime (5%) and Criminal Damage (21%). 

 
 

 
The evaluation acknowledges that the work carried out in the 
area has been alongside the activities of other services, yet 
the area has witnessed a significant change since the 
introduction of the New Cross Support Team. 

 
Outcomes 
(residents) 

 
Significant gains in terms of the quality of life for residents were 
evidenced by increased scores on their outcome stars 
particularly in the areas of family, confidence, 
housing/accommodation, employment and finances. Residents 
spoke of increased social contacts as well as improvements 
in relationships with family and friends. Ten out of the 11 
residents interviewed described increases in their self-belief and 
confidence which had led to a greater taking of control of their 
lives in a range of areas. These gains in residents’ quality of 
life need to be understood in the context of ‘crises’ being 
experienced by all 11 of the residents before the New Cross 
project had intervened. Six out of the 11 talked about intending to 
end their life had they not received support. Two said their 
lives were heading towards prison, three said they were at 
the point of a mental health breakdown and 2 said their 
homelessness would have continued. 

 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham 
Fire and Rescue Authority 
Community Safety Committee 

Service Delivery Performance 
Model  

Report of the Chief Fire Officer 

Date: 17 June 2016 

Purpose of Report: To provide and update Committee members on the 
development of the Service Delivery performance model. 

CONTACT OFFICER 

Name : Wayne Bowcock 

Tel : 01159 670880 

Email: 
wayne.bowcock@notts-fire.gov.uk 

Media Enquiries 
Contact: 

Therese Easom  
01159 670880 therese.easom@notts.fire.gov.uk 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:therese.easom@notts.fire.gov.uk


1. BACKGROUND

1.1 As part of the Nottinghamshire’s Fire and Rescue Service’s (NFRS) priorities 
under the Integrated Risk Management Plan 2014 – 2019 (IRMP), it aims to 
deliver a professional, effective, and value for money service to all those who 
live, work and travel in the County of Nottinghamshire and the City of 
Nottingham. 

1.2 Work is currently progressing to introduce a performance driven business 
planning process which supports improvements and targets management 
interventions directly aimed at an improvement through performance culture. 

1.3 Service Delivery has undertaken a review of the department’s current 
performance arrangements and as an outcome has commenced work to 
develop a performance model for the Service Delivery department. 

1.4 In 2012, Chief Fire Officers Association (CFOA) consulted Fire and Rescue 
Services on Fire Protection performance.  As a result of the consultation 
CFOA has released a performance pathway which clearly defines inputs, 
activities, outputs, outcomes and community impacts.  The performance 
pathway approach will also form the structure for delivering ‘Improvement 
through Performance’ for all areas of Service Delivery. 

1.5 The Service Delivery performance model will develop an ‘Improvement 
through Performance’ process which will support the development of a 
Service-wide performance framework. 

2. REPORT

2.1 The Service Delivery directorate has three key areas of delivery: Response 
(including Fire Control), Fire Protection and Community Safety.  Each of these 
areas deliver services to the communities of Nottinghamshire and the City of 
Nottingham.  Since the change of government there has been a shift in focus 
of reporting performance, with focus now on the delivery of data and statistics 
to the national level as required by Department for Communities and Local 
Government (changes to this resulting from the move to the Home Office are 
unknown at present). 

2.2 Service Delivery have identified the areas to be included within the 
Performance Framework, incorporating the use of internal data captured by 
various departments and data systems within the Service. 

2.3 Organisational Development will form an integral part of ‘Improvement through 
Performance’ with a vision towards a progressive, learning organisation.  
‘Shaping our Future’ work streams (high quality services, an engaged and 
motivated workforce and strong Governance and financial stability) coupled 
with a strong set of organisational values will be measured against activities 
and outcomes within the Service Delivery performance model. 

Page 16



2.4 The main focus of the Service Delivery performance model will be to deliver 
‘Improvement through Performance’.  Historically, Service Delivery has 
gathered and analysed data recorded following operational incidents and local 
Fire Protection and Community Safety activities utilising internal databases.  
This data has then been used to develop targets linked to indicators with the 
focus being on reduction of incidents and ‘Creating Safer Communities’. 

2.5 Service Delivery have identified a need to produce a performance culture and 
underpinning processes with the aim of achieving ‘Improvement through 
Performance’.  A data warehouse has been created to enable managers to 
easily access data from the following areas. 

 Operational incidents

 Finance

 Health and Safety

 Fire Protection

 Community Safety

 Learning and Development

 Human Resources

2.6 The available information enables the manager to readily access data and 
compare this to previous time periods, as well as directly measuring 
performance against other districts or wider data sets within the organisation.  
This closer scrutiny will enable managers to produce performance reports, not 
only reporting on current and past performance but importantly delivering an 
improvement plan with clear objectives to improve performance. 

2.7 This improvement plan will be scrutinised by the Service Delivery 
Management Team, who will be able to identify trends across all areas of 
Service Delivery and ultimately recognise good practice which can be shared 
to improve performance of individuals, teams and the organisation. 

2.8 To measure the levels of improvement against the improvement plan a robust 
audit process will be developed to measure and report the performance of 
individuals and teams within Service Delivery.    

2.9 Quarterly reports will be measured against improvement plans to enable 
Service Delivery to assess the current levels of performance and also produce 
a progress report on the identified  areas of improvement. 

2.10 This work will directly support and compliment the ongoing development of the 
corporate performance framework which is a Service priority. 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising from this report at this time. Future 
developments of any technical supporting systems may lead to some financial 
implications and these will be addressed in subsequent reports. 

Page 17



4. HUMAN RESOURCES AND LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
IMPLICATIONS

Further development of a Performance Framework will require a level of training for 
managers which will be achieved within the existing arrangements for professional 
development. 

5. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

An equality impact assessment has not been undertaken because the purpose of the 
report is to provide an update on the improvement through performance model being 
developed within Service delivery.  

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

There are no crime and disorders implications arising from this report. 

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS

Effective management of relevant information and the implementation of an 
improvement through performance model will support the management of and 
mitigation of corporate risk issues. Prioritisation and a targeted approach will mitigate 
any unnecessary and unco-ordinated activity therefore maximising impact and the 
value of the work undertaken.  

9. RECOMMENDATIONS

That members note the contents of this report and support the development of an 
‘Improvement through Performance’ framework. 

10. BACKGROUND PAPERS FOR INSPECTION (OTHER THAN PUBLISHED
DOCUMENTS)

None 

John Buckley 
Chief Fire Officer 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	4 NEW CROSS PROJECT
	5 SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE MODEL

